

## CHAPTER 322 — S.F.No. 830

*An act relating to creditor's remedies; providing for an increase in the amount of household goods exemption; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 550.37, Subdivision 4.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1: Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 550.37, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. (a) All wearing apparel, one watch, household furniture, utensils, household appliances, phonographs, radio and television receivers, and foodstuffs of the debtor and his family; and (b) household furniture, household appliances, phonographs, radio and television receivers of the debtor and his family, not exceeding \$3,000 in value. The exemption provided by this subdivision may not be waived except with regard to purchase money security interests. Except for a pawnbroker's possessory lien, a nonpurchase money security interest in the property exempt under this subdivision is void.

Provided however, if a debtor has property of the type which would qualify for the exemption under clause (b) of this subdivision, of a value in excess of \$3,000 an itemized list of the exempt property, together with the value of each item listed, shall be attached to the security agreement at the time a security interest is taken, and a creditor may take a nonpurchase money security interest in the excess over \$3,000 by requiring the debtor to select his exemption in writing at the time the loan is made.

Approved May 29, 1981

## CHAPTER 323 — S.F.No. 886

*An act relating to health; requiring a written disclosure and labeling information regarding dimethyl sulfoxide; regulating the sale of dimethyl sulfoxide; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 147 and 151.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. [147.075] ADMINISTRATION OF DIMETHYL SULFOXIDE.

Subdivision 1. DEFINITION. For purposes of this section, "physician" means a person licensed under the provisions of this chapter.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 2. WRITTEN RELEASE. The patient, when presenting a prescription to a pharmacist for dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) shall sign a written release that releases the pharmacist and the pharmacy from any liability therefor.

Subd. 3. WRITTEN DISCLOSURE. The physician shall inform the patient in writing if dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) has not been approved as a treatment or cure by the food and drug administration of the United States department of health and human services for the disorder for which it is being prescribed.

**Sec. 2. [151.41] SALE OF DIMETHYL SULFOXIDE.**

Subdivision 1. BOND. Any person not licensed or registered by the board of pharmacy pursuant to sections 151.01 to 151.40 and this section, as a pharmacist or pharmacy, or not licensed to practice medicine by the board of medical examiners pursuant to sections 147.01 to 147.33, selling or offering for sale at retail in Minnesota dimethyl sulfoxide in quantities of 64 fluid ounces or less shall file with the commissioner of health a bond with corporate surety, cash, or United States government bonds in the sum of \$15,000, made payable to the state of Minnesota.

Subd. 2. EXEMPT SALES. Provisions of this section shall not apply to legend drugs as defined in section 151.01, subdivision 17; to industrial dimethyl sulfoxide designed for use as a commercial cleaner or solvent and sold in quantities larger than 64 fluid ounces; or to dimethyl sulfoxide intended for veterinary medicine use.

Subd. 3. LABELING REQUIREMENTS. Except when dispensed upon the prescription of a physician, no container of dimethyl sulfoxide containing 64 fluid ounces or less shall be sold or offered for sale unless the labeling states at least the following:

- (a) quantity;
- (b) concentration of product;
- (c) vehicle or diluent;
- (d) indications for use approved by the food and drug administration of the United States department of health and human services;
- (e) recommended dosages;
- (f) statement of side effects;
- (g) contraindications for use;
- (h) antidote in case of accidental ingestion;
- (i) name of the manufacturer.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Failure to comply with these requirements shall mean the drug is deemed to be misbranded.

Subd. 4. VIOLATION. Violation of this section shall result in forfeiture of the bond and subject the product to embargo under section 151.38.

Sec. 3. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 1 and 2 are effective the day following its final enactment.

Sec. 4. **SUNSET PROVISION.**

Sections 1 and 2 are repealed effective June 30, 1983.

Approved May 29, 1981

---

### CHAPTER 324 — S.F.No. 890

*An act relating to wild animals; increasing the amount of the reward which may be paid for information relating to game law violations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 97.51.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 97.51, is amended to read:  
97.51 **REWARDS.**

Rewards may be paid by the commissioner to others than salaried conservation officers or peace officers, for information leading to the arrest and conviction of any person for violating provisions relating to ~~moose~~ big game, or to threatened or endangered species of wildlife, in ~~the a~~ a sum of \$50 not to exceed \$1000; for violating provisions relating to ~~deer~~, \$25; for violating provisions relating to other wild animals, ~~\$10~~ not to exceed \$500. The rewards shall only be paid out of any funds donated to the commissioner for these purposes.

Sec. 2. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day after final enactment.

Approved May 29, 1981

---

### CHAPTER 325 — S.F.No. 915

*An act relating to sheriff fees; prescribing fees to be charged by the sheriff; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 357.09, Subdivisions 1 and 2, and by adding a subdivision; repealing Laws 1978, Chapter 743, Section 12.*

**Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**